
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

February 7th, 2017  9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Phil Boyum 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Presentation of the Arbor Day Proclamation. Accepting the proclamation will be Mr. 

Henry Clay, Wesley Parker as well as others from the Tree Board. Georgia Forestry 
Chief Ranger (Bulloch County) Doug Chassereau will present the Mayor and Tree 
Board with a Tree City USA flag and recognize the City of Statesboro for its 
participation in the Tree City USA Program. 

B) Presentation of Retirement for Howard Hadley, Equipment Operator, Public Works 
Department, after 27 years of service 

C) Presentation of Retirement for Eugene Smith, Groundskeeper, Public Works 
Department, after 21 years of service  

D) Presentation of Retirement for Joseph Mingle, Refuse Collector, Public Works 
Department, after 17 years of service  

E) Presentation of Employee of the Quarter Award 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 01-17-2017 Council Minutes 
b) 01-19-2017 Called Council Meeting 

 
6. Second Reading and Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Ordinance 2017-02: An 

Ordinance to amend Section 6-6(b) of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances 
(Alcoholic Beverages) to comply with State regulations. [GA560-2-2-.02(9)] 
 

7. Second Reading and Consideration of a Motion to Adopt Ordinance 2017-03: An 
Ordinance to amend Section 6-19(c)(10)(b) of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances 
(Alcoholic Beverages) to allow for a three year lookback. 
 

8. Public Hearing and First Reading of amended Ordinance 2017-04: An Ordinance to 
amend Section 6-3 of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) 
to redefine Catered Event. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-05 : A Resolution to accept a 
$15,000.00 Crash Data Reporting System Grant administered by the Georgia Association 
of Chiefs of Police (GACP) for the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety, Grant Number 
GA-2017-405cM3DA-036, funding 100% of the purchase of computers and mounting 
hardware for patrol cars. 
 

10. Consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2017-06: A Resolution Approving the 
Naming of Freedom Way and Buckhead Drive. 
 

11. Consideration of Motion to support City working with the DSDA, as described in 
Memorandum from DSDA Executive Director, to lease two (2) parcels of property from 
Norfolk Southern Railroad in order to create and develop a Dog Park along the McTell 
Trail and a new Green Space along E. Main St.  Final formal leases to be submitted to 
City Council for consideration/ approval. 

 

12. Consideration of a Motion to award a five year contract for copier/printer equipment and 
maintenance services to Digital Office Equipment based on a current contract with the 
Washington County Board of Education (GA). The equipment portion of this contract 
will be funded by the Central Services Department while the cost of the maintenance 
services portion will be divided between departments based on usage. This contract 
adoption is permitted through the City of Statesboro Ordinance 2.2.7. 
 

13. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract for the purchase of a combination sewer 
vacuum truck to Super Products LLC per NJPA Contract # 022014-SPL in the amount of 
$332,363.00. This item was budgeted in fiscal year 2017 under CIP# STM-11 in the 
amount of $375,000.00 and will be paid by Stormwater revenue funds. 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract for Consulting Services to complete a 
City-Wide Strategic Plan to Amec Foster Wheeler in the amount of $28,500. If approved, 
this will be funded by the General Fund. 
 

15. Other Business from City Council 
 

16. City Managers Comments 
A) Presentation of the Statesboro Police Department website 
B) Update on the credit card user fee 

 
17. Public Comments (General) 

 
18. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Potential 

Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 

19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 

A Proclamation by the Mayor and  

City Council of Statesboro, Georgia 
   

ARBOR DAY 
 
WHEREAS, In 1872, J Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of  

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 
 
WHEREAS, The holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting 

of more than a million trees in Nebraska, and 
 
WHEREAS,  Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees can reduce the erosion of our topsoil by wind and water, lower 

our heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce oxygen 
and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

 
WHEREAS, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, 

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic 

vitality of business areas, and beautify our community, and 
 
WHEREAS, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Jan J. Moore, Mayor of the City of Statesboro, do hereby 
                                       proclaim February 17, 2017 as 
 

ARBOR DAY 
                         

 in the City of Statesboro, and I urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support   efforts to 
protect our trees and woodlands, and 

 
FURTHER, I urge all citizens to plant and care for trees to gladden the heart and 

promote the well-being of this and future generations. 
 
 

Dated this 7th  day of February in the year 2017 
                                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                _____________________ 

                                                                                             Jan J. Moore, Mayor 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 
January 17, 2017 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on January 17, 2017 at 5:30p.m. in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn and Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager Randy 
Wetmore, Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling and City Attorney 
Cain Smith. Councilman John Riggs was absent.     
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan J. Moore. 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Councilman Travis Chance 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations  
Jimmy Edenfield was recognized as he retires from the City of Statesboro with 42 years of 
service. 
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 01-03-2017 Council Minutes 
 

Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of Motion to Approve: APPLICATION # V 16-12-03: 
Missy Bennett requests a variance from Article V Section 503(C) Table 3 of the Statesboro 
Zoning Ordinance regarding the minimum required side yard setback for the property 
located at 122 Park Avenue (Tax Parcel S41 000047 000). 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
There were no comments for or against the request. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve: 
APPLICATION # V 16-12-03: Missy Bennett requests a variance from Article V Section 
503(C) Table 3 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the minimum required side yard 
setback for the property located at 122 Park Avenue (Tax Parcel S41 000047 000). Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Second Reading of Ordinance 2017-01: An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) for proximity 
requirements. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the request. 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
Councilman Jones made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve Ordinance 
2017-01: An Ordinance amending Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic 
Beverages) for proximity requirements. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and First Reading of Ordinance 2017-02: An Ordinance to amend Section 
6-6(b) of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) to comply with 
State regulations. [GA560-2-2-.02(9)] 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the first reading. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
There was no action taken on the item. 
 
Public Hearing and First Reading of Ordinance 2017-03: An Ordinance to amend Section 
6-19(c)(10)(b) of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) to allow 
for a three year lookback. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
No one spoke for or against the first reading. 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
There was no action taken on the item. 



 
 

 
Councilman John Riggs joined the meeting at 6:00 pm by phone. 
 
Public Hearing and First Reading of Ordinance 2017-04: An Ordinance to amend Section 
6-3 of the City of Statesboro Code of Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) to redefine Catered 
Event. 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
Darin Van Tassel spoke in favor of the ordinance. 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jeff to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
At 6:10 pm, Councilman John Riggs disconnected the phone during the discussion. 
There was no action taken on the item. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2017-03 : A Resolution to adopt the 
document entitled “Personnel Policies and Procedures (Employee Handbook)”, dated 
January 17, 2017, attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by reference, is 
hereby adopted as the official personnel policies and procedures to be used to administer 
all personnel matters for the City of Statesboro; and that any ordinances, resolutions, 
motions or informal policies conflict with any provision of this adopted document are 
hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict.  
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve Resolution 
2017-03 : A Resolution to adopt the document entitled “Personnel Policies and Procedures 
(Employee Handbook)”, dated January 17, 2017, attached hereto and incorporated into this 
Resolution by reference, is hereby adopted as the official personnel policies and procedures to be 
used to administer all personnel matters for the City of Statesboro; and that any ordinances, 
resolutions, motions or informal policies conflict with any provision of this adopted document 
are hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2017-04: A Resolution to approve phase 
II - 50% of the Compa-Ratio - Move to Market option of the Fiscal Year 2016 
Classification and Compensation Plan provided by Evergreen Solutions Inc., 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to approve Resolution 
2017-04: A Resolution to approve phase II - 50% of the Compa-Ratio - Move to Market option 
of the Fiscal Year 2016 Classification and Compensation Plan provided by Evergreen Solutions 
Inc., Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve awarding of contract to the low bidder, Hawk 
Construction, LLC, for the construction of a Class A Burn Facility as well as the 
construction of a repelling wall on the Training Tower at the Public Safety Training Center 
in the amount of $73,560.00.  This project is funded under CIP# FD 62 using 2013 
SPLOST. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to award a contract to the 
low bidder, Hawk Construction, LLC, for the construction of a Class A Burn Facility as well as 
the construction of a repelling wall on the Training Tower at the Public Safety Training Center in 
the amount of $73,560.00.  This project is funded under CIP# FD 62 using 2013 SPLOST. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor Moore discussed the funeral procession stating there would be 2 escorts available for 
funeral. Council called for a Called Council Meeting on Thursday morning January 19th at 8:30 
am to adopt an Ordinance regarding funeral processions. 
 
City Manager Randy Wetmore stated that City Hall would extend working hours for 3 days a 
month. The days would be determined by the cut off dates of the utility bills. City Hall will be 
open at 7:00 am on those days to accommodate the payment of utility bills. The pilot program 
will run for 4 months and then be reevaluated. 
 
City Managers Comments 

A) Presentation of the Police Department’s new website 
 
This presentation will be given in February 
 

B) 2016 Development Review Presentation 
 
Director of Planning and Development Frank Neal gave a power point of the building permits 
issues for 2016. He stated the department has collected over 1 million dollars in fees. 
                                                                                                                                          

C) Discussion of Funeral Processions  
This was discussed under “Other Business from City Council”. 
 
Public Comments (General) None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 pm. 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Called Council Minutes 

January 19th , 2017 

 
A Called Council Meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on January 19th, 2017 at 8:30 
a.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: 
Phil Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn and John Riggs.  Also present were City Manager Randy 
Wetmore and City Clerk Sue Starling. Councilman Travis Chance was absent.    
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Jan Moore.  
  
Consideration of a Motion to adopt an Ordinance 2017-05: An Ordinance amending 
Statesboro Code of Ordinances Chapter 78 “Traffic and Vehicles” to include Municipal 
Law regarding funeral processions. 
 
Mayor Moore read aloud the entire proposed ordinance; stopping at intervals to allow citizens to 
offer comments, concerns and questions. Mr. Tremble and Mr. Hill, representing two of the 
funeral homes in Statesboro, were present as well as the news media, citizens and department 
heads of the City. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to adopt Ordinance 2017-
05: An Ordinance amending Statesboro Code of Ordinances Chapter 78 “Traffic and Vehicles” 
to include Municipal Law regarding funeral processions. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and 
Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Riggs voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by 
a 4-0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 am. 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 
From: Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 
 
Date: January 31, 2017 
 
 
RE: February 7th , 2017 City Council Agenda Items 
 
 
Policy Issue: Statesboro Code of Ordinances: Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) 
Amendment so that Sec 6-6(b) comply with state regulations contained in GAC 
560-2-2-.02(9) 
 
 
Recommendation: Alcohol Advisory Board recommended 5-0. 
 
 
Background: Second Reading 
 
 
Budget Impact: None 
 
 
Council Person and District: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: Amended and existing Ordinance  
 
 
 
  
 
   



 

Ordinance 2017-02: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council has determined there is sufficient reason and need to 
amend Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the public hearing that preceded the adoption of the ordinance amendment was 
advertised; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled as follows: 
 
Chapter 6 Alcoholic Beverages of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia is hereby 
amended and shall read as follows:  
 
Sec. 6-6. - When issuance prohibited. 
 
(b)  Convictions; Pending violations. The term "conviction" as used in this paragraph shall include 
a finding or verdict of guilt, plea of guilty, or a plea of nolo contendere including also anyone 
currently on probation or otherwise currently under a court’s supervision to avoid a judgment of 
guilt being entered under what is commonly referred to as “first offender sentence” or “pre-trial 
diversion program.”   No license for the sale of alcoholic beverages shall be issued to any person or 
applicant where the applicant or any individual person having an ownership interest in the 
business:  
 
(1)  has been convicted within fifteen years immediately prior to the filing of the alcoholic 
beverage application with the City Clerk of any felony or for whom outstanding indictments, 
accusations or criminal charges exist charging such individual with any of such offenses and for 
which no final disposition has occurred. of a felony who served any part of a criminal sentence, 
including probation within ten (10) years immediately following the date of receipt of submission 
of the application. If at the time of application, the applicant is charged with any of the offenses 
prescribed in this subsection, consideration of the application shall be suspended until entry of a 
plea or verdict or dismissal;  
 
(2)  has been convicted within five years immediately prior to the filing of the alcoholic beverage 
application with the City Clerk of the violation (i) of any state or federal law pertaining to the 
manufacture, possession, transportation or sale of malt beverages, wine or intoxicating liquors, or 
the taxability thereof except a first conviction of selling alcohol to underage persons; (ii) of a crime 
involving moral turpitude; or (iii) of a crime involving soliciting for prostitution, pandering, 
gambling, letting premises for prostitution, keeping a disorderly place, the traffic offense of hit and 
run or leaving the scene of an accident, or any misdemeanor serious traffic offense as defined in 
O.C.G.A. § 40-6-390 et seq., but excluding any first conviction for reckless driving or driving 
under the influence of alcohol or drugs in the past 10 years as measured from the date of arrest, or 
for whom outstanding indictments, accusations or criminal charges exist charging such individual 



 

with any of such offenses and for which no final disposition has occurred. If at the time of 
application, the applicant is charged with any of the offenses prescribed in this subsection, 
consideration of the application shall be suspended until entry of a plea or verdict or dismissal;  
 
(3)  has been convicted of two violations of the ordinances of the City of Statesboro governing 
alcoholic beverages licensed hereunder within the last five years immediately prior to the filing of 
the licensee's application with the City Clerk, except as specifically provided in paragraph (c) 
below, concerning revocation of alcohol license, or paragraph (d) below, concerning selling alcohol 
to underage persons. If at the time of application, the applicant is charged with any of the offenses 
prescribed in this subsection, consideration of the application shall be suspended until entry of a 
plea or verdict or dismissal. 
 
(4) has been convicted of a misdemeanor who served any part of a criminal sentence, including 
probation within five (5) years immediately preceding the date of receipt of submission of the 
application. 
 
First Reading: January 17, 2017 
  
Second Reading: February 7, 2017 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
_________________________     _________________________ 
    By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor       Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 



 

Ordinance 2017-02: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council has determined there is sufficient reason and need to 
amend Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the public hearing that preceded the adoption of the ordinance amendment was 
advertised; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled as follows: 
 
Chapter 6 Alcoholic Beverages of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia is hereby 
amended and shall read as follows:  
 
Sec. 6-6. - When issuance prohibited. 
 
(b)  Convictions; Pending violations. The term "conviction" as used in this paragraph shall include 
a finding or verdict of guilt, plea of guilty, or a plea of nolo contendere including also anyone 
currently on probation or otherwise currently under a court’s supervision to avoid a judgment of 
guilt being entered under what is commonly referred to as “first offender sentence” or “pre-trial 
diversion program.”   No license for the sale of alcoholic beverages shall be issued to any person or 
applicant where the applicant or any individual person having an ownership interest in the 
business:  
 
(1)  has been convicted of a felony who served any part of a criminal sentence, including probation 
within ten (10) years immediately following the date of receipt of submission of the application. If 
at the time of application, the applicant is charged with any of the offenses prescribed in this 
subsection, consideration of the application shall be suspended until entry of a plea or verdict or 
dismissal;  
 
(2)  has been convicted within five years immediately prior to the filing of the alcoholic beverage 
application with the City Clerk of the violation (i) of any state or federal law pertaining to the 
manufacture, possession, transportation or sale of malt beverages, wine or intoxicating liquors, or 
the taxability thereof except a first conviction of selling alcohol to underage persons; (ii) of a crime 
involving moral turpitude; or (iii) of a crime involving soliciting for prostitution, pandering, 
gambling, letting premises for prostitution, keeping a disorderly place, the traffic offense of hit and 
run or leaving the scene of an accident, or any misdemeanor serious traffic offense as defined in 
O.C.G.A. § 40-6-390 et seq., but excluding any first conviction for reckless driving or driving 
under the influence of alcohol or drugs in the past 10 years as measured from the date of arrest, or 
for whom outstanding indictments, accusations or criminal charges exist charging such individual 
with any of such offenses and for which no final disposition has occurred. If at the time of 
application, the applicant is charged with any of the offenses prescribed in this subsection, 
consideration of the application shall be suspended until entry of a plea or verdict or dismissal;  



 

 
(3)  has been convicted of two violations of the ordinances of the City of Statesboro governing 
alcoholic beverages licensed hereunder within the last five years immediately prior to the filing of 
the licensee's application with the City Clerk, except as specifically provided in paragraph (c) 
below, concerning revocation of alcohol license, or paragraph (d) below, concerning selling alcohol 
to underage persons. If at the time of application, the applicant is charged with any of the offenses 
prescribed in this subsection, consideration of the application shall be suspended until entry of a 
plea or verdict or dismissal. 
 
(4) has been convicted of a misdemeanor who served any part of a criminal sentence, including 
probation within five (5) years immediately preceding the date of receipt of submission of the 
application. 
 
First Reading: January 17, 2017 
  
Second Reading: February 7, 2017 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
_________________________     _________________________ 
    By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor       Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 
From: Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 
 
Date: January 31, 2017 
 
 
RE: February 7th , 2017 City Council Agenda Items 
 
 
Policy Issue: Statesboro Code of Ordinances: Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) 
Amendment to change lookback period from 5 to 3 years 
 
 
Recommendation: Alcohol Advisory Board recommended 5-0. 
 
 
Background: Second Reading 
 
 
Budget Impact: None 
 
 
Council Person and District: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: Amended and existing Ordinance  
 
 
 
  
 
 
   



 

Ordinance 2017-03: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council has determined there is sufficient reason and need to 
amend Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the public hearing that preceded the adoption of the ordinance amendment was 
advertised; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled as follows: 
 
Chapter 6 Alcoholic Beverages of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia is hereby 
amended and shall read as follows:  
 
Sec. 6-19. - Compliance; violations; penalties. 
 
(c)  Probation, suspension, revocation of license; administrative hearing, administrative hearing 
fee. 
 
(10)  In considering the term of suspension, whether to permanently revoke the license or whether 
to impose terms and conditions of probation on the license, the Mayor and City Council shall 
consider the following factors:  
 
a.  The gravity of the violation; 
 
b.  Any previous violations within the past three years period  as measured from the date of 
previous offense to the date of the current offense; 
 
c.  Actions of the licensee, its employees, subcontractors or agents in connection with the violation. 
 
First Reading: January 17, 2017 
  
Second Reading: February 7, 2017 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
_________________________     _________________________ 
    By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor       Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Travis L. Chance 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager and Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 
From: Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 
 
Date: January 31, 2017 
 
 
RE: February 7th , 2017 City Council Agenda Items 
 
 
Policy Issue: Statesboro Code of Ordinances: Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) 
Amendment to change definition of “catered events.” 
 
 
Recommendation:    
 
 
Background: Public Hearing and First Reading 
 
 
Budget Impact: None 
 
 
Council Person and District: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: Amended and existing Ordinance  
 
 
 
  
 
 
   



Catered Event:  An event where alcoholic beverages are served by a licensed caterer for a particular 
function (i.e. retirement dinner, wedding reception, private party) to which the general public is not 
admitted where food is served, and the total cost of the food exceeds the cost of alcohol 

PROPOSED: An event where alcoholic beverages are distributed or sold off premises by a licensed 
alcoholic beverage caterer in connection with a particular function (i.e. retirement dinner, wedding 
reception, private party, etc.) in compliance with O.C.G.A. § 3-11-1 et seq and GAC 560-2-13. 

 

Sections 1.8.3-5 will need to be removed in absence of the food to beverage ratio language currently in 
place. Same with 1.8.2 (F) & (G) 

 



1.8 CATERED EVENT PERMIT 

1.8.1 An application for a Catered Event Permit should be filed at least 30 days prior to  the 
 date the event is scheduled to occur.  Failure to file the application in a timely manner is 
 grounds for denial of the permit. 

1.8.2 Prior to the sale of alcoholic beverages at a catered event a licensed alcoholic   
 beverage caterer shall make a written application under oath on the form as   
 provided by the City Clerk or his designated representative that provides, at least,   
 the following minimum information: 

  (A)  The location of the catered event; 

  (B)   The duration of the catered event and the times during which alcoholic  
  beverages shall be provided or sold; 

  (C)   The person or entity hiring the caterer; 

  (D) The nature of the function being  catered, i.e. retirement dinner, wedding  
  reception, private party; 

  (E)   The numbered of expected guests at the catered event. 

  (F)  The estimated total cost of the food expected to be served. 

  (G)  The estimated total cost of the alcohol expected to be served. 

1.8.3 As part of the application the licensed alcoholic beverage caterer shall swear and affirm 
 under oath that the event is a bona fide catered event where alcoholic beverages are 
 served for a particular function (i.e. retirement dinner, wedding reception, private party)   
 food exceeds the cost of alcohol.  

1.8.4  The licensed alcoholic beverage caterer shall maintain in their files receipts and 
 documentation showing the actual total costs of food served at the event and the actual 
 total costs of the alcohol served at the event.  Upon request of the City Clerk these 
 receipts and documentation shall be furnished to the City Clerk along with a sworn 
 statement under oath that the receipts and documentation are a true and accurate 
 reflection of the total costs of food and alcohol served at the catered event. 

1.8.5 For purposes of calculating the total cost of food the sale of ice, garnishes, soft drinks, 
 mixers or beverages of any kind for use or consumption on the premises with or in an 
 alcoholic beverage shall not constitute the sale of food. 

 



 

Ordinance 2017-04: An Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances (Alcoholic Beverages) 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council has determined there is sufficient reason and need to 
amend Chapter 6 (Alcoholic Beverages) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the public hearing that preceded the adoption of the ordinance amendment was 
advertised; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled as follows: 
 
Chapter 6 Alcoholic Beverages of the Code of Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia is hereby 
amended and shall read as follows:  
 
Sec. 6-3. - Definitions. 
 
Catered Event:  An event where alcoholic beverages are distributed or sold off premises by a 
licensed alcoholic beverage caterer in connection with a particular function (i.e. retirement dinner, 
wedding reception, private party, etc.) in compliance with O.C.G.A. § 3-11-1 et seq and GAC 560-
2-13. 

 
First Reading: February 7, 2017 
  
Second Reading: February 21, 2017 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
_________________________     _________________________ 
    By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor       Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 





















RESOLUTION 2017-05 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT CRASH DATA REPORTING SYSTEM GRANT  

FOR THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 

THAT WHEREAS, on January 23rd, 2017 the City of Statesboro received  a $15,000.00 
Crash Data Reporting System Grant administered by the Georgia Association of Chiefs of Police 
(GACP) for the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety, the Grant Number is GA-2017-
405cM3DA-036, funding 100% of the purchase of computers and mounting hardware for patrol cars 
of the projects anticipated total cost as per the attached documents also dated 01/10/2017; and 
GACP announced the availability of this non-matching grant, which may be utilized for the 
purchase of computers and mounting hardware for patrol cars; and   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia in regular session assembled this the 2nd of February, 2017 hereby accepts the Crash Data 
Reporting System Grant. 
 

Adopted this 2nd of February, 2017. 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
  
 
 
    
To:   Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
 
From:  Jason Boyles, Director of Public Works and Engineering 
 
Date:  1/30/17 
 
RE:  Naming of Existing Un-named Street and Change of Street Name 
 
Policy Issue:  Uniform Road Naming 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff is recommending to change the name of the segment of Henry Boulevard 
that intersects with Brannen Street to “Buckhead Drive” and to name the un-
named road that intersects with Veteran’s Memorial Parkway to “Freedom 
Way”.  I have attached a map that illustrates the location of these two 
impacted roads; they are listed as road 2 and road 3, respectively. The County 
has no objection to this proposal but may readdress property fronting road 2. 
 
Background:  
Both the main road in the Statesboro Crossing development and the entrance 
road that intersects with Brannen Street are named Henry Boulevard.  I have 
attached a map for reference which lists these as road 1 and road 2, 
respectively.  In addition, the road in Statesboro Crossing which intersects with 
the bypass is un-named.  Since one of the roads is unnamed and another is a 
duplicate, City ordinance Section 58-9(8) provides mayor and council with the 
authority to assign a name to such road(s) in a process similar to that of a new 
road.  City Attorney Cain Smith has no objection to this proposal. 
 
Budget Impact:   
The impact to the budget will be minimal, including minor expenses to install 
new street name signs and to replace existing street name signs. 

Council Person and District: 
Travis Chance, District 5 
 
Attachments: 
Map 
Resolution 



R E S O L U T I O N 2017-06 
A Resolution Approving the Naming of Freedom Way and Buckhead Drive in Statesboro Crossing 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have previously accepted the roads within the Statesboro 
Crossing commercial development; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the mayor and city council believe it is in the best interest of the public to maintain a 

uniform road naming system; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the mayor and city council have determined there is a duplication of road names and 

an un-named road name within Statesboro Crossing; and,  
 
WHEREAS, ordinance Section 58-9 establishes that the mayor and city council, in its absolute 

discretion, shall assign a name to an un-named road or to a road where a dispute to the proper name 
exists; and, 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro, Georgia as 
follows: 
 

Section 1. That the un-named road which intersects with Henry Boulevard at its western 
boundary and intersects with Veteran’s Memorial Parkway at its eastern boundary is hereby named 
“Freedom Way”. 

 
Section 2. That the segment of Henry Boulevard which intersects with Brannen Street at its 

northern boundary and intersects with Henry Boulevard at is southern boundary is hereby named 
“Buckhead Drive”, thereby extending Buckhead Drive from Northside Drive East to Henry Boulevard. 

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after its 

date of adoption. 
 

 
 
Adopted this 7th day of February, 2017. 

  
 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA   

 
 

_____________________________ 
By: Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk 



VE
TE

RA
NS

ME
MO

RI
AL

PK
WY

VE
TE

RA
NS

ME
MO

RI
AL

PK
WY

£¤301

£¤301

¬«73
¬«73

Road # 3

Ro
ad

 # 
2

Road # 1

1 inch = 200 feet

¯

± Statesboro Crossing



 
 CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
To:     Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
          Sue Starling, City Clerk 
From: Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Date: January 31, 2017 
RE:      City Council Agenda Item for February 7, 2017 Council Meeting 
 
 
Policy Issue:  Consideration by the Mayor and City Council Members for the City 
of Statesboro to work with the DSDA to lease two (2) parcels of property from 
Norfolk Southern Railroad in order to create and develop a Dog Park along the 
McTell Trail and a new Green Space along E. Main St.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of agreement as described in 
Allen Muldrew’s memorandum.   
 
Background:  See attached memorandum from Allen Muldrew, Executive 
Director of the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority (DSDA) 
 
Budget Impact:  Initial capital expenses to be funded through outside sources.  
City then will be responsible for providing basic maintenance of both parcels 
including maintaining landscaping, picking up trash, minor repairs to fencing or 
structures, and the like.  Work will fall under normal routine maintenance of the 
McTell Trail and City Parks with no additional personnel being requested.  There 
should be minimal expenses needed for routine maintenance and the provision 
of potable water.  Note:  The lease agreements for both parcels will be written 
such that the City is not responsible for the detection or cleanup of any existing 
environmental issues.  
 
Council Person and District:  District 1, Councilman Boyum, Green Space 
                                              District 2, Councilman Jones, Dog Park 
 
Attachments:  Memo from DSDA Director 
                        Exhibit 1 & 2 
 
 
 



10 Siebald St, Statesboro, GA 30458   912.764.7227 mainstreet@statsborodowntown.com 
 

 

  
 
 
 

Memorandum  

To:     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager, COS 

From: Allen Muldrew, Executive Director, DSDA 

Re:      Dog Park & E. Main St Green Space Agreements 

Date:  January 30, 2017 

 

Below is a brief summary of the informal agreement items that you and I 
have discussed previously that have allowed me to work towards securing 
the Norfolk Southern Railroad property lease agreements.  There are two 
(2) parcels.  One parcel is for a Dog Park located along McTell Trail, and the 
second parcel is for creating additional green space along E. Main St. (see 
Exhibits 1 &2). 

I would ask that you present this information to the Mayor and City Council 
at an upcoming City Council meeting so that we can confirm that they 
support the idea of this Dog Park and Green Space and that they agree to 
the itemized list of commitments you and I discussed, as described, herein. 

The two attachments identify the location of the Dog Park (Exhibit 1) and 
the E. Main St. Green Space (Exhibit 2).  For the Dog Park, the DSDA will 
clean up and build out the Dog Park mostly through community 
engagement.  We have Leadership Bulloch wanting to make it their 
community project.  Youth Leadership Bulloch has already raised money for 
the fencing of the Dog Park.  DSDA will put together an informal “Friends of 
the Dog Park” to assist with the build out of the park.  I will look to them for 
some kind of fundraising project. There has been a lot of interest from the 

 
Downtown Statesboro Development Authority 

Main Street Statesboro 

mailto:mainstreet@statsborodowntown.com


10 Siebald St, Statesboro, GA 30458   912.764.7227 mainstreet@statsborodowntown.com 
 

 

community in helping establish the Dog Park.  The biggest assistance from 
the City for the Dog Park will be helping to re-establish the parking area and 
making it useful and attractive.  I am not asking to pave the parking area, 
but rather to regrade it, add some gravel, and possibly some parking stops, 
signage and landscaping.  I would primarily ask the City to provide the 
manpower and equipment needed to rework and improve the parking area, 
with the majority of the funding coming from some of the aforementioned 
resources. 

The leasing of the space on E. Main Street is simply to re-establish that area 
as a green space instead of rail road maintenance yard.  You and I will have 
to look at ways to reclaim and establish that area as something more 
attractive. We may want to sod it or fence it in. The Georgia Southern Short 
Line has verbally agreed to relocate their usage of this area to another site. 

 

City of Statesboro agrees to: 

• Be the Lessee of both RR Properties illustrated by Exhibits 1 and 2 
• Add the Dog Park and Green Space to the City’s liability insurance 

policy 
• Provide a water tap/ water meter. 
• Provide basic maintenance to both the Dog Park and Green Space 

(i.e. cut the grass, pick up trash and debris, maintain any landscaping, 
and the like). 

• Provide assistance in the improvements of the two parcels as 
described, herein. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mainstreet@statsborodowntown.com


10 Siebald St, Statesboro, GA 30458   912.764.7227 mainstreet@statsborodowntown.com 
 

 

 

DSDA agrees to:  

• Make the annual lease payments to the Railroad on both parcels 
• Help coordinate any improvements 
• Partner with the City on the improvements’ of the two pieces of 

property as described, herein. 
 

Thank you for your guidance and support in these downtown 
redevelopment and improvement projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:mainstreet@statsborodowntown.com


Lease Property
From Railroad
To Create
Dog Park

E CHERRY ST

S M
UL

BE
RR

Y S
T

E GRADY ST

Blind
 Willie

McTe
ll T

rail

1 inch = 100 feet

¯

± Exhibit 1



Lease Property
From Railroad
To Create
"Green Space"

BR
OA

D 
ST

S M
UL

BE
RR

Y S
T

E VINE ST

COURTLAND ST

E MAIN ST

SAVANNAH AV

RA
ILR

OA
D 

ST

HILL ST

N MULBERRY ST

1 inch = 100 feet

± Exhibit 2



 
 CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

J. Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
 
Date: 1-30-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: Recommendation of Copier/Printer Contract—5 Year Term 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend the City of Statesboro adopt this copier/printer contract with 
Digital Office Equipment for the equipment lease amount and per the 
maintenance rates stated in the contract (see projected amounts and 
attached contract). The contract to be adopted is a current contract held by 
the Washington County Board of Education (GA) and this adoption is permitted 
per the City of Statesboro Ordinance Section 2.2.7. 
     
Background:  
 
The recommendation being presented is for a copier/printer lease and 
maintenance contract for a 60 month period. These copiers and printers would 
replace current ones in use by all City departments. The contract, if approved, 
would “piggy-back” one from the Washington County Board of Education as 
this is allowed per City of Statesboro Ordinance Section 2.2.7. By utilizing this 
contract, the City of Statesboro will receive the same volume discount as the 
contract with the Washington County Board of Education. The Washington 
County Board of Education Purchasing Department was contacted to validate 
this contract. Although this is a 5 year contract, the City of Statesboro is only 
obligated for one year increments and can cancel this contract per O.C.G.A. 
36-60-13. 
 



 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

 
Illustrated below is a comparison of monthly and yearly cost or our existing 
contract and the proposed new contract. 
     
Budget Impact: 
 

Monthly Cost         Yearly Cost    5 Year Cost 
Current Contract:  $5,894.16  $70,729.92  $353,649.60 
 
New Contract:  $4,997.69  $59,972.28  $299,861.40 
 
These totals represent a monthly copier/printer lease amount that is fixed and a 
monthly maintenance/toner fee that will fluctuate based on usage on a per 
copy rate as stated in the contract. The monthly maintenance/toner fee is 
based on our most recent 12 month usage history. The totals represent 14 
copiers (13 on our old inventory) and the placement of more cost effective 
local area printers to replace the high cost inkjet printers currently in use. A large 
part of the savings represented in this proposal is based on the replacement of 
these inkjet printers. The average inkjet black and white copy is 3 cents per copy 
while the laser black and white copy rate is approximately a ½ cent per copy.  
The average color copy for the inkjet is 17 cents per copy while the laser printer 
per copy rate is 6 cents per copy. Approximately 51 inkjet printers will be 
replaced with 47 Laser printers. The brand of copiers in this contract will consist 
of Copystar models and the laser printer brand will be Kyrocera models. Digital 
Office Equipment met with all City departments to determine each 
department’s need concerning this contract. The location and model of each 
copier and laser printer has been planned and allocated based on these 
meetings. This contract is unit based, so the City of Statesboro can add or delete 
the final total units of copiers and laser printers for the final contract. These totals 
represent the recommended amounts after factoring in the departmental 
meetings. This contract is based on the Washington County Board of Education 
(GA) and, if desired, the City of Statesboro is permitted to adopt this contract 
per City Ordinance Section 2.2.7. The equipment lease portion of this contract 
will be funded out of the Central Services budget while the maintenance fees 
will be divided out for payment by City departments based on usage amounts. 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Proposed Digital Office Equipment Contract (Based on 
Washington County Board of Education (GA) Contract) 
 
 
 





 
 CITY OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
Randy Wetmore, City Manager 

Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 

J. Alvin Leaphart, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Travis L. Chance, District 5 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
To: Randy Wetmore, City Manager 
     Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
From: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date: 1-30-2017 
 
RE: Policy Issue: NJPA Purchase—Vacuum Truck/ Stormwater Division 
 
Recommendation:  
 
We recommend this contract be awarded for the purchase of a combination 
sewer vacuum truck to Super Products LLC per NJPA Contract # 022014-SPL in 
the amount of $332,363.00. This item was budgeted in fiscal year 2017 under 
CIP# STM-11 in the amount of $375,000.00 and will be paid by Stormwater 
revenue funds. 
 
Background:  
 
This vehicle/equipment, if approved, will be utilized in the Stormwater Division of 
Public Works to clean and maintain pipes and other infrastructure. This machine 
will replace a 1993 model that was transferred from the Water Sewer 
Department. This 1993 model will be brought to Council to be declared surplus 
at a later date. If approved, this vacuum truck will be purchased of NJPA 
(National Joint Powers Alliance) contract #022014-SPL in the amount of 
$332,363.00. We have used this and other purchasing coops in the past to 
obtain vehicles and equipment while benefitting from the volume pricing 
contained in these contracts. The City of Statesboro Ordinance 2.2.7 allows for 
coop purchases of this nature. This item is budgeted in fiscal year 2017 under 
CIP# STM-11 in the amount of $375,000 and will be paid out of Stormwater 
revenue funds.  
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Copy of NJPA Contract # 022014-SPL 




















	02-07-2017 Council Agenda
	02-2017 proclamation Arbor Day1
	01-17-2017 Council minutes
	01-19-2017 Called Council minutes
	02-2017-02 Ordinance Alcohol Memo
	02-2017-02 Chapter 6 (redlined) Alcohol Ordinance Amedment January 2017
	WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and

	02-2017-02 Chapter 6 Alcohol Ordinance Amedment January 2017
	WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and

	02-2017-03 Ordinance  Alcohol memo
	02-2017-03 Chapter 6 Alcohol Ordinance Amedment January 2017
	WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and

	02-2017-04 Ordinance alcohol memo
	02-2017-04 proposal  Catered Event Agenda Item 2
	02-2017-04 Catered Events
	02-2017-04 Chapter 6 Alcohol Ordinance Amedment(catering
	WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance regulating alcoholic beverages; and

	02-2017-05 Resolution  Memo Police GACP Grant
	02-2017-05 Resolution Grant Acceptance Resolution (Autosaved)
	02-2017-Statesboro Crossing Road Naming Memo (2)
	02-2017-06 ResolutionStatesboro Crossing Roads Resolution
	R E S O L U T I O N 2017-06
	A Resolution Approving the Naming of Freedom Way and Buckhead Drive in Statesboro Crossing

	02-2017-06 Statesboro Crossing Roads map
	02-2017-1 Dogpark Council Memo 2017
	02-2017-2 DSDA Dog Park Memo
	02-2017-3 Dog Park Exhibit 1
	02-2017-4 Green Space Exhibit 2
	02-2017 Memo New Form--Copiers Rec
	02-2017- Copier
	02-2017 Memo New Form--SW Vac Truck
	02-2017 Sewer Vacuum Truck
	02-2017 Strategic Plan-Planning

